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P R O C E E D I N G S 

JUDGE BOND:  All right, we're going to go on the record in the matter of the Michigan Commission for the Blind versus Mark Rothenhauser. It's docket number 2011-1252 MCB. For the record again my name is William D. Bond. I'm the Administrative Law Judge assigned to hear this matter today. According to the file this is a appeal brought by Mr. Rothenhauser pursuant to notification that he received from the Michigan Commission for the Blind that they were going to proceed with license revocation proceedings and Mr. Rothenhauser has appealed that matter so we're here today to take that matter up. First of all, I'd like to have the representative for the Michigan Commission for the Blind to identify themselves and -- for the record.

MR. HULL: My name is James Hull. I'm the assistant program manager of the Business Enterprise Program and with me is Amber Lockwood who will be serving as my reader.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, again your title?

MR. HULL: Assistant program manager.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, thank you.

And I received on Monday a appearance from Terry D. Eagle.

Is that correct, Mr. Eagle?

MR. EAGLE: Correct.

JUDGE BOND:  And you're here representing Mr. Rothenhauser?

MR. EAGLE: Correct.
JUDGE BOND:  Am I pronouncing Mr. Rothenhauser's name correctly?

MR. EAGLE: Yes.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, the first order of business today --

MR. EAGLE: Excuse me, just for the record, immediately to my left is Jessica Madden -- M-a-d-d-en -- she's my reader and driver.

JUDGE BOND:  M-a-d-d-e-n?

MR. EAGLE: Correct.

MS. MADDEN: Correct.

JUDGE BOND:  Reader and driver, okay, thank you very much, and of course Mr. Rothenhauser's here?

MR. EAGLE: Yes.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, the first order of business today, there was a request for adjournment of the hearing, was submitted on Monday, apparently it was faxed to our office. A copy was supposedly sent to Carla Haynes, Michigan Commission for the Blind hearings coordinator. When Mr. Hull showed up today he indicated he knew nothing about that. Also there was a Motion to Dismiss the Petition for Failure to State a Claim, was also submitted, and I provided photocopies of the documents this morning to Mr. Hull so that they could review it prior to the hearing so I would like to start by addressing those matters on the record and we'll see where we're going to go from here. 
What I would like to first do is start with your Motion to Dismiss the Petition for Failure to State a Claim. Mr. Eagle, would you like to argue that in front of me, please?
MR. EAGLE:  I don't -- I'm not really sure of the date of that initial Notice of Hearing but the first threshold matter is that the notice was sent to Mr. Rothenhauser --

JUDGE BOND:  I think you're getting the cart before the horse, sir. The dismissal isn't -- doesn't seem to be based on the notice itself, according to what you wrote here, so why don't you address the reason why you think this matter should be dismissed?
MR. EAGLE:  Well, the notice has something to do with that given that, first of all, the Commission in the Notice of Hearing has the issue as only a statement as to whether the Commission is justified in revoking Mr. Rothenhauser's license and under the ADA a notice is supposed to include a list of allegations of what violations of the rules or the laws or whatever and we have nothing to defend.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, so that's your grounds for asking that it be dismissed?

MR. EAGLE:  Yes.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, didn't you also put in here something about he wasn't informed of his right to be represented?

MR. EAGLE:  Well, that -- yes --

JUDGE BOND:  But that's not true, is it?

MR. EAGLE:  Yes, it -- well --

JUDGE BOND:  The notice says right on it that he could be represented by an attorney or a representative, correct?

MR. EAGLE:  Okay, that's why I was going to bring up the notice, the timeliness of the  notice.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, that's another issue. We'll get to that in a minute.

MR. EAGLE:  Well, excuse me, for the record I'd like to say that that is an issue because one, Mr. -- the notice wasn't provided in a format that Mr. Rothenhauser could read properly or -- and the second part is that it wasn't sent to the correct address so he didn't have time to get that to me.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, what is the correct address?

MR. ROTHENHAUSER: Three-twenty-one Denver Street, Lansing, Michigan, four-eight-nine-one-zero.

JUDGE BOND:  And did you put in a change of address?

MR. ROTHENHAUSER: Yes, I did, sir. I filed that with the post office I'd say within the last week of -- I'd say the last week of September and there was a problem with my mail being forwarded to my new place because the mail delivery person thought no one was living there so they didn't leave my mail there but he didn't know that I was actually living in back of the house because the house was still work -- being worked on. When I opened my mail box last Saturday I saw a big bundle of mail that they apparently had been holding and they decided to finally deliver it to me, that's when I saw the notice of the proceedings for today.

JUDGE BOND:  So you say it was on Saturday?

MR. ROTHENHAUSER: Yeah.

JUDGE BOND:  And what date was that?

MR. ROTHENHAUSER: I believe it would be October 7th.

JUDGE BOND:  For the record then (unintelligible) says the date would have been the 9th, and Saturday according to my calendar, it looks like it's the 8th so that would have been -- one -- two -- three -- four days ago -- received the notice four days ago.

What address, Mr. Eagle, was the notice sent to?

MR. EAGLE:  I'm not really sure because it's not in a format that I can read.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, you have a reader, don't you, sir?

MR. EAGLE:  Not when I received it.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, anything else you want to say?

MR. EAGLE:  Not at this time.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, Mr. Hull?

MR. HULL:  I'd like to respond to each of those. First, the point about the specific issues not being outlined, specific issues were outlined in a follow up compliance review and summarized in a letter that was mailed to Mr. Rothenhauser at the address he provided to the Commission, the same address that was listed on the documentation provided to the Administrative Hearing System for pursuit of a hearing. Those outlines include violations of the promulgated rules and were provided to him in a format of his preference and were hand-delivered and mailed to him. Secondly, Mr. Rothenhauser is aware of the promulgated rules. He's been given a copy of the promulgated rules and the promulgated rules further outline an individual's rights to be represented in a full evidentiary hearing. It states that one of the rules of the Elected Committee (inaudible) summary and in the promulgated rules is to serve as an advocate and represent operators so therefore to make the statement that he was unaware that he was allowed a representative would be inaccurate. As to sufficient notice the Commission provided to the Administrative Hearing System the address that it had on file that Mr. Rothenhauser provided to us and that was the address provided to the Hearing System. We were not aware at the time of the Request for Hearing that was forwarded to MAHS that Mr. Rothenhauser either had or had intended to move or change addresses.
JUDGE BOND:  All right, anything else you want to say?

MR. HULL:  Not at this time.

JUDGE BOND:  All right.

MR. EAGLE:  Can I respond to that?

JUDGE BOND: You can respond.

MR. EAGLE:  First of all, I'd like as a threshold issue to put on the record that this problem of providing information to blind people in a format that is usable to them is a serious problem with this office and with the Commission for the Blind and it violates not only the Michigan Act but also the Americans With Disabilities Act and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, Section 504, and if we are going to be able to adequately represent people that the Commission wants to take action against then we need under the law the information sent and provided in formats that blind people can use.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, anything else -- anything else, Mr. Eagle?

MR. EAGLE:  No.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, based upon what I've heard today I'm going to deny the Motion to Dismiss the so-called Petition. I find that there was adequate notice sent to the party at the address on file, that the information was sent out earlier which Mr. Rothenhauser appealed from. He clearly knew what the issues were. Apparently the issues deal with simply delinquent set-aside fees that need to be paid to the Commission and that was clearly set forth in the notification that was sent by the Michigan Commission for the Blind. Furthermore, as far as the late notice you've had four days notice of today's hearing. Under all the circumstances the parties are here. Unless there was some showing of serious prejudice to the party I don't see any reason to delay the proceedings any further so I'm going to also deny the request to adjourn the hearing today.

MR. EAGLE:  May I (inaudible) on the record (inaudible)?

JUDGE BOND:  Excuse me?

MR. EAGLE:  May I say something on the record?

JUDGE BOND:  We're going to proceed with the hearing. What did you want to say on the record?

MR. EAGLE:  Go ahead. I'll do it in my opening statement.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, and again, we do have the correct address now. Mr. Rothenhauser provided me with 321 Denver Street, Lansing, Michigan, 48910, was it?

MR. ROTHENHAUSER: Correct.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, thank you very much. 
All right, because this matter is something that deals with a proposed license revocation by the Michigan Commission for the Blind it is my understanding that the Department would have -- or the Commission would have the burden of proof and should go forward with their proofs so I'm going to give the representative for the Michigan Commission for the Blind the opportunity to make an opening statement first and then we'll go to Mr. Eagle and he can make an opening statement or reserve it as he might like.

So Mr. Hull, would like to make an opening statement?

MR. HULL:  Yes, Your Honor.

opening statement

MR. HULL:  The Business Enterprise Program is a program that has been around since 1936 based on federal law and has worked since 1936 under specific rules and obligations that its licensees must follow. One of those obligations in the state of Michigan, through promulgated rules most recently promulgated in 2004, is to pay set-aside fees back to the Commission for the continued operation of the program. This fee is a 10 percent fee of the net proceeds of the business that all licensees, regardless of their facility, must pay to the Commission, and our promulgated rules outline specific due dates that that payment must be submitted by for each operating month. Mr. Rothenhauser has consistently over a period of years demonstrated a pattern of either making delinquent payments or failing to make payments whatsoever. The promulgated rules are clear. Operators who fail to make two or more payments are subject to license revocation. The Commission's responsibilities to the program and to all of its licensees is to enforce those promulgated rules. We don't want to revoke a license. We're required by the promulgated rules to proceed with this action and revoke the license of any operator who fails to follow the rules including the making of payments to set-aside fees. That's the primary issue. Actually, that is the sole issue and question in this hearing today is has Mr. Rothenhauser made set-aside payments to -- in accordance with the promulgated rules and is he in compliance or has he failed to make these payments and therefore out of compliance and in a position where the Commission must proceed with license revocation. It is our contention and as our proofs will show that Mr. Rothenhauser has not made these payments and therefore we must proceed with revoking his license to operate a facility. Thank you.
JUDGE BOND:  All right, Mr. Eagle, did you wish to make an opening at this time or do you want to reserve?

MR. EAGLE: I'd like to make an opening statement.

JUDGE BOND:  All right.

opening statement

MR. EAGLE:  First of all, I want to go on the record saying that I believe this is a illegal hearing because Mr. Rothenhauser has not been given proper notice under the Act 24.271, and with -- under provisions of Americans With Disabilities Act and in Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended. Secondly, the Section 24.274 has been violated because we have not been given an opportunity, given the lack of notice, to receive agency records that would support Mr. Rothenhauser's position, and thirdly, I think it's just disingenuous for Mr. Hull and the Commission to show up here and try to revoke his license in a short notice without complying with the different laws when, in fact, they agreed to put together a BEST (ph) team which is called the Business Enterprise Enhancement Support Team and that team has been actively working over the last six weeks or so to help Mr. Rothenhauser meet all his obligations and we have not had a chance to counter-petition this office for violations of the Commission and the Act having to do with their responsibility to Mr. Rothenhauser with respect to minimal income and equipment and other things that they are required to do under the law so this -- if this moves forward this proceeding will have only a snapshot of the entire picture because of the fact that we're being denied due process.
JUDGE BOND:  Okay, Mr. Hull, are you ready to proceed with presenting evidence?

MR. HULL:  I am, Your Honor, at this time I'd like to call Mr. Josh Hoskins to the stand.

JUDGE BOND:  Mr. Hoskins, please come right up here and raise your right hand. Do you solemnly swear or affirm that the testimony you are about to give will be the truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

MR. HOSKINS: Yes, sir.

JUDGE BOND:  Please have a seat. I'd like to just inform you that we are digitally recording this hearing and your voice seems a little weak there. Make sure you speak up loudly and clearly so we can get a good recording.

THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, go ahead.

direct examination

by mr. hull:

Q Would you please state your name for the record?

A Joshua Hoskins.

Q And what is your --
JUDGE BOND:  Would you please spell that for me?

THE WITNESS:  H-o -- my first or last name?

JUDGE BOND:  Both.

THE WITNESS:  J-o-s-h-u-a -- last name is H-o-s-k-i-n-s.
JUDGE BOND:  All right, go ahead.
by MR. HULL: 

Q And what is your position at the agency?

A Promotional agent.

Q Could you just briefly describe what the role of a promotional agent is?

A To give support and assistance to all the operators in the Business Enterprise Program.

Q And do you cover a specific geographic region?

A Yes, sir.

Q And what is that?

A The Lansing central region which is region three.

Q And does that region include working with Mr. Rothenhauser at the State Capitol?

A Yes, sir.

Q And how long approximately have you had that position?

A Approximately a year and a half.

Q And how long in that year and a half have you worked with Mr. Rothenhauser?

A The whole time.

Q Are you familiar with the Business Enterprise Program promulgated rules?

A Yes.

Q And what are those rules?

A Those rules are the -- what the legislature sets forth as the rules that are followed by the agency and the operators.

Q And are you familiar with -- in those rules any reporting requirements that operators might have?

A Yes, sir.

Q Are operators required to submit reports to the agency?

A Yes, they are.

Q What kind of reports and how often?

A They have to submit monthly reports that are due each month and the set-aside fees are due as well.

Q What do those monthly reports consist of?

A The financial reports for the business that (inaudible).

Q Okay, and you mentioned set-aside fees that are due; what is a set-aside fee?

A Set-aside fee is 10 percent of the net proceeds after -- the net proceeds of the business.

Q Okay, and when are those set-aside fees due?

A The 25th of the month.

MR. HULL:  Okay, Your Honor, at this time I'd ask that you take judicial notice of R393.27, that's Business Enterprise Program Promulgated Rules, Rule .7.

JUDGE BOND:  All right.

MR. HULL:  Thank you, Your Honor.

by MR. HULL: 

Q Do these promulgated rules assess a penalty for failing to make payment of the set-aside fees?

A Yes.

Q And what is that penalty?

A Fifty percent.

JUDGE BOND:  Excuse me, 50 percent of what?

THE WITNESS:  Fifty percent of the set-aside fee that was due.
JUDGE BOND:  How do you mean that then?

THE WITNESS:  As an example if there was $150 due and the $150 was not paid on time a $75 fee is assessed on top of that.

JUDGE BOND:  So then they would owe 225?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, thank you.

by MR. HULL: 

Q And if an operator fails to make payment does that -- do the promulgated rules list a penalty for that?

A I don't understand the question.

Q If an operator fails to make payment on their set-aside fees, not that they paid it late, but they just completely failed to pay it, are there penalties for that?

A As far as more than one?

Q Yes?

A Yes.

Q And what is that penalty?

A After two it's revocation of license.

MR. HULL:  Okay, Your Honor, at this time I'd like to offer into evidence --

MR. EAGLE:  I'd like clarification, after two what?

JUDGE BOND:  Okay, what -- after two what?

THE WITNESS:  After two late set-aside fees.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, thank you.

MR. HULL:  I'm sorry, Your Honor, just -- if I could clarify that statement.

by MR. HULL: 

Q You're saying after two payment of late set-aside fees the Commission commences license revocation or is it after failure to pay two set-aside fees the Commission commences license revocation?

A Failure to pay two set-aside fees.

MR. HULL:  Okay, thank you.

Your Honor, at this time I'd like to present into evidence a letter sent from the Commission to Mr. Rothenhauser in March of this last year.

JUDGE BOND:  Do you have a copy for the opposing party?

MR. HULL:  I do. I have a copy for Mr. Eagle, for yourself, and actually for Mr. Rothenhauser.

JUDGE BOND:  All right.

Why don't you show it to your reader?
MR. EAGLE:  I’m going to object to this because of the length and the fact that it's not a form that I can use.

JUDGE BOND:  Okay, why don't you show it to your reader and --

MR. EAGLE:  Then I'd ask for an adjournment so that we can go over it.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, if you'd like to take a brief recess to go to the room out there, the so-called lawyers' room and go over it you may have a recess.

MR. EAGLE:  We'll take that but I want clarification from the bench. You're saying that this is an adequate format for me as a blind person to read; is it not?

JUDGE BOND:  You have a reader, sir.

MR. EAGLE:  You're saying --

JUDGE BOND:  That's why you have a reader; is that not true?

MR. EAGLE:  Is that what the -- my question is -- from the bench is --

JUDGE BOND:  Obviously, Mr. Eagle, you can't read it. Obviously, you can't read that. You have a reader, don't you?

MR. EAGLE:  The Americans With Disabilities Act and the Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act require that these documents be put in a format that I as a blind person can use and they're not in that.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, I understand that.

MR. EAGLE:  It doesn't say anything about having me required to be paid -- to pay a reader.

JUDGE BOND:  Your objection is noted on the record. Now, would you like the recess to have the reader --

MR. EAGLE:  Yes, I would.

JUDGE BOND:  Okay, we're going to take a recess and we're going to come back --

MR. EAGLE:  I would like 20 minutes.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, come back at five minutes to ten. Go off the record at this time.

(WHEREUPON, a brief recess was taken at this time).

JUDGE BOND:  All right, we're going to go back on the record in the matter of Michigan Commission for the Blind versus Mark Rothenhauser, docket number 2011-1252 Michigan Commission for the Blind. According to the clock now it's about 9:58 a.m. and we're going back on the record and as we broke the Commission for the Blind had proposed an exhibit, March 29, 2011 letter to Mr. Rothenhauser and we broke to give Mr. Eagle an opportunity to learn the contents of the letter. At this particular point do you have any objection to receipt of the document?
MR. EAGLE:  Nothing other than it's not a format that I can use.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, I'm going to receive it then. It's labeled as Petitioner's Exhibit Number 1 and I'll receive it as such.

MR. HULL:  Thank you, Your Honor.

by MR. HULL: 

Q Mr. Hoskins, are you familiar with this document?

A Yes.

Q And can you explain what this document is?

A It's a compliance letter to Mr. Rothenhauser.

Q What is a compliance letter?

A It's a letter notifying him of past due set-aside fees and possible revocation of his license.

Q So this is a letter indicating to him that he has committed rule violations; is that correct?

A Yes, sir.

MR. EAGLE:  Objection.

JUDGE BOND:  And grounds for the objection?

MR. EAGLE:  No specific rule.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, it's stated in the letter, isn't it?

MR. EAGLE:  I can't read that.

JUDGE BOND:  I know you can't but you took the time, 20 minutes, to review it with your reader and obviously you must have had a discussion about what's in the letter.

MR. EAGLE:  I don't have a digital memory and I don't have --

JUDGE BOND:  All right, the letter does indicate the rule that's being violated, Rule Number 27 --

MR. EAGLE:  For the record, will you repeat it?

JUDGE BOND:  Excuse me?

MR. EAGLE:  For the record, will you repeat the rule number?

JUDGE BOND:  (Unintelligible) facility Rule Number 27 is listed here.

MR. EAGLE:  And what's the title of that?

JUDGE BOND:  Licensee reporting requirements states -- there's also Sections 28 and 29 listed in the letter, and Subsection 9 says, "Failure to submit two or more reports or payments during a twelve-month period shall result in commencement of the license revocation proceeding", that's on page four.

MR. EAGLE:  Okay.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, let's proceed.

by MR. HULL: 

Q Mr. Hoskins, this letter identifies specific rule violations, does that include failure to pay set-aside fees?

A Yes.

MR. HULL:  All right, Your Honor, at this time I'd like to offer a list of memorandum sent to Mr. Rothenhauser, the most recent dated July of this past year, outlining his specific obligations and failure to make payment of set-aside fees.

JUDGE BOND:  Now, is this some document that's been previously submitted to the -- to Mr. Rothenhauser?

MR. HULL:  It's a document -- it's a list of documents that has previously been mailed to him.

JUDGE BOND:  All right --

MR. EAGLE:  Objection, do they have proof of service of those documents?

JUDGE BOND:  Do you want to respond, Mr. Hull?

MR. HULL:  It is not the practice of the Commission to provide proof of service on memorandums sent to operators not pertaining specifically to actions that are arising during a hearing. These are standard memorandum sent to operators notifying them of their obligations. These are not letters that are sent as due course in a hearing and therefore don't fall under the APA.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, and you're saying you're just wishing to submit a list?

MR. HULL:  No, actually, I have the letter I'd like to submit for Mr. Hoskins to authenticate.

MR. EAGLE:  Judge, may I say something?

JUDGE BOND:  Go ahead.

MR. EAGLE:  You know, if we're going to do this in this manner this is going to take days because I am going to assure that my client has as much opportunity to address these things as possible and given the fact that they violated the ADA and Rehabilitation Act and Section 24.271, having given proper notice of what's going to be the issues, and Section 24.274 having to do with the presentation of the availability of agency records which we have absolutely had no opportunity to even request because of the lack of notice on the hearing, this thing's going to go on even -- or you're going to allow a continuance to get this stuff done right.
JUDGE BOND:  Okay, do you have a copy of the documents for opposing party?
MR. HULL:  I have a copy of documents for all parties.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, why don't you submit the documents to all parties?
MR. EAGLE:  And I'll make the same request --

JUDGE BOND:  We're going to take another recess.

MR. HULL:  Your Honor, I have one other document that I'd like to present.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, why don't we submit that and they can review that as well.

MR. HULL:  Wonderful.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, the first document that we're going to have submitted here, we're going to label it just for purposes of identification as Petitioner's exhibit sticker -- we're going to label it as Number 2 -- just Proposed Exhibit Number 2 at this particular point. If I decide that it's going to be admitted later I'll add my initials and date to it, and the other document that we're going to look at is going to be Proposed Exhibit Number 3 and we're going to take another recess. We're going to come back here at precisely -- at 10:30 after this recess and continue. So this first document for the reader, on the first page there's a date, July 29th, 2011, that's Petitioner's Exhibit Number 2, and Petitioner's Number 3 is dated August 8, 2011 on the top.

Do you know that?

UNIDENTIFIED FEMALE SPEAKER: Yes, sir.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, we'll take a brief recess, or a recess till 10:30 and then we're going to continue the hearing.

(WHEREUPON, a brief recess was taken at this time).

JUDGE BOND:  All right, we're back on the record in the matter of Michigan Commission for the Blind versus Mark Rothenhauser, docket number 2011-1252. It is still October 12th, 2011. The time on the clock now is about 10:26 a.m. so we took about a 16-minute recess to accommodate the parties with reviewing the proposed exhibits. We have Proposed Exhibits -- Petitioner's Exhibit Number 2 and Petitioner's Exhibit Number 3.

Mr. Eagle, do you have any objection to either of the exhibits?

MR. EAGLE:  I do. I believe it's Proposed Exhibit 2. May I voir dire the witness?

JUDGE BOND:  Excuse me?

MR. EAGLE:  May I question the witness about the --

JUDGE BOND:  If you want to voir dire the witness go ahead.

voir dire examination

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Mr. Hoskins, do you have that document in front of you, Number 2?
A Dated July 29th, is that the one we're talking about?

MR. EAGLE:  Yes.

THE WITNESS:  Yes, I do.

MR. EAGLE:  Will you look at page two and three.

THE WITNESS:  From where?

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Do you recognize this?

A Yes.

Q Did you prepare this?

A No, sir.

Q Do you know where this information was derived from; do you know who prepared this?

A From what I can see, according to the papers, Judy Wallace (ph).

MR. EAGLE:  I'd like to object to it based on the fact that he cannot validate this, authenticate this, and it is not his writing, and he cannot authenticate it.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, Mr. Hull?

MR. HULL:  The information presented that was used to generate this document comes from the BEP database which is available to all BEP staff members. Miss Wallace is our accounting specialist who works with Mr. Hoskins and generates all of our financial reports for us. She would have provided a copy of this document to Mr. Hoskins for his review prior to it being sent out.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, is she available to authenticate the document?

MR. HULL:  Not at this moment, Your Honor.

MR. EAGLE:  May I say something for the record, please?

JUDGE BOND:  Sure.

MR. EAGLE:  I'd like to say for the record that this is an example of where this process could have been expedited by the fact that if this stuff had been provided to us in advance in a format that I could have used we may have stipulated to it.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, but you're not prepared to stipulate to this document today?

MR. EAGLE:  No.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, at this particular point I'm going to hold Petitioner's Exhibit 2. I'm not going to admit it into the record. It may subsequently be admitted if it could be properly authenticated in some way but I'm going to hold it. What about the second exhibit, Petitioner's Number 3?

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Mr. Hoskins, did you write this memo?

A No.

Q So can you testify as to its accuracy?

A Yes, I can because of the fact that I have read this prior to.

Q And do you know from where this information was derived?

A From our system.

Q So did you prepare this, that information?

A I did not prepare it.

MR. EAGLE:  I have the same objection.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, I'm going to hold this document for the time being.

Further evidence or testimony you'd like to present, Mr. Hull?

MR. HULL:  Just a few further questions, Your Honor.

direct examination continued

by MR. HULL: 

Q Mr. Hoskins, each of those documents that are being held at the moment, are you aware as to whether or not Mr. Rothenhauser received them, to the best of your knowledge?

A To the best of my knowledge, yes.

Q Okay, thank you, at this time are you aware of any outstanding obligations that Mr. Rothenhauser still has in regards to set-aside fees?

A Yes.

Q Is that to say that he still has not paid all of his outstanding set-aside fees to the best of your knowledge?

A Yes.

MR. HULL:  Thank you, no further questions at this time, Your Honor.

JUDGE BOND:  What fees are not paid -- what fees are not paid at this point?

THE WITNESS:  The ones that are listed on document -- on August 8th document -- would you like me to read them to you?

JUDGE BOND:  Well, is this of your personal knowledge?

THE WITNESS:  That they're not -- yes.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, then what fees are not paid, then, of your own personal knowledge?

THE WITNESS:  The July 10th -- or excuse me -- July of 2010 -- August, 2010 -- September, 2010 -- October, 2010 -- November, 2010 -- December, 2010 -- April, 2011 -- May, 2011 -- and June, 2011.

MR. EAGLE:  Objection, I'd like to ask that that be stricken because he's reading from a document that hasn't been submitted or accepted.

JUDGE BOND:  I asked him of his own personal knowledge what --

MR. EAGLE:  He's reading off the document.

JUDGE BOND:  I understand, sir, but I asked him of his own personal knowledge and he testified.

MR. EAGLE:  Ask him --

JUDGE BOND:  Is that of your own personal knowledge or are you just reading from the document?

THE WITNESS:  It's my personal knowledge but I referenced this to verify my dates.
JUDGE BOND:  All right.

MR. EAGLE:  Objection, the document was not received so I ask that that be stricken.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, your objection is noted for the record. It's appropriate to review any type of document that an individual might want to refresh their recollection.

MR. EAGLE:  Not if it hasn't been accepted as evidence.

JUDGE BOND:  No, that's not true. It doesn't have to be accepted as evidence in order to be something to refresh his recollection.

MR. EAGLE:  Okay, let's move on.

JUDGE BOND:  We'll move on.

MR. EAGLE:  Let's move on so we can get out of here.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, any other questions or evidence or testimony from this witness under direct, Mr. Hull?

MR. HULL:  No, thank you.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, cross-examination?

cross-examination

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Mr. Hoskins, how long have you been a PA?

A A year and a half.

Q So what date did you start?

A April 5th of 2010.

Q And does that mean that you began having direct contact with licensed operators at that time?

A No, not at that time.

Q At what point did you have direct contact with operators?

A Approximately three to four weeks after I started.

Q So had you completed all of the training with the BEP as a new employee at that point?

A Yes.

Q And so what was the date again that you started?

A April 5th of 2010.

Q So by May 5th you were having contact with Mr. Rothenhauser?

A In that area, I don't know the exact date but somewhere in that area.

Q Okay, when you came on to the scene as a PA were you advised of problems with Mr. Rothenhauser in his location?

MR. HULL:  Objection, relevance.

JUDGE BOND:  What's the relevance, Mr. Eagle?

MR. EAGLE:  It goes to the -- their own case about outstanding set-aside fees.

JUDGE BOND:  Okay, you can answer.

THE WITNESS:  Can you repeat the question.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Do you -- were you -- when you became involved with Mr. Rothenhauser were you made aware of problems with his location?

A I guess I'm not understanding the question. What do you mean aware of problems?

Q Were you told that there were any problems with his location?

A I was told of some issues. I don't know if they were problems, but just.

Q Okay, what were the issues that you were made aware of?

A Just as far as the inventory levels and things along those lines and leaving the facility.

Q Did you do an inventory?

MR. HULL:  Objection, relevance.

JUDGE BOND:  Yeah, I don't find this relevant to the payment of set-aside fees which is what seems to be the sole issue in this matter.

MR. EAGLE:  Okay, for the record I'd like to say again we have not been given an opportunity to present cross -- a counter-petition with relationship to the Commission's responsibility to have an impact on Mr. Rothenhauser paying his set-aside.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, now, is this not Mr. Rothenhauser's appeal, Mr. Eagle?

MR. EAGLE:  No, it isn't.

JUDGE BOND:  Yes, it is.

MR. EAGLE:  Excuse me. The Commission --

JUDGE BOND:  Mr. Rothenhauser submitted an email, to my understanding, requesting an administrative hearing. He's the one appealing the Commission for the Blind's decision to move forward with licensing -- license revocation; isn't that true?

MR. EAGLE:  No, it isn't.

JUDGE BOND:  Well --

MR. EAGLE:  And that isn't what the law requires. The law -- the laws and the rules, specifically Rule 393.16 state that the Commission is to commence proceedings.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, I understand that. We commence proceedings at the request of the Commission but Mr. Rothenhauser sent an email after he received a correspondence from the Commission for the Blind indicating that he wished to have an administrative hearing, and that's what commenced this action.

MR. EAGLE:  That's not what he said. He said he wanted to --

JUDGE BOND:  Do you have a copy of his email?

MR. EAGLE:  No, I don't.

JUDGE BOND:  I have a copy of his email in the file.

MR. EAGLE:  See, that's the problem. This --

JUDGE BOND:  Well, it may be a problem but please don't argue with me. I'm going to take another recess. I'm going to give you a copy of the email and --

MR. EAGLE:  I don't want it. I will get it through the Circuit Court because we're going to go to court over these issues and make --

JUDGE BOND:  Well, we're going to proceed with this hearing and we're going to proceed --
MR. EAGLE:  Then let me go on with my questioning.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, I want you to take a look at the email where he requested an administrative hearing.

MR. EAGLE:  Okay, excuse me, what's the caption of this case, what --

JUDGE BOND:  I understand what the caption is.

MR. EAGLE:  What is the caption?

JUDGE BOND:  And the Commission for the Blind did --

MR. EAGLE:  Will you please read the caption?

JUDGE BOND:  I've read it several times into the record. 

MR. EAGLE:  What is the --

JUDGE BOND:  Michigan Commission for the Blind, Petitioner, versus Mark Rothenhauser, Respondent, but I'm still telling you there is an email and I want that to be a matter of the record.

MR. EAGLE:  Okay, for the matter of the record the caption speaks for itself. Mr. Rothenhauser is not appealing. Under the rules the Commission has commenced proceedings to revoke his license. Mr. Rothenhauser has asked for nothing except an opportunity to have due process.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, we're going to take a brief recess. It's now about 10:37. I'm going to bring you a copy of the email and I'll have you folks go over it.

MR. EAGLE:  I'd like to ask that you read it into the record.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, I'll read it into the record.

MR. EAGLE:  And we won't need a recess. The Commissioners will have access --

JUDGE BOND:  The email is addressed to Carla Haynes from Mr. Rothenhauser at Hotmail.com, sent Tuesday, August 23rd, 2011 at 1:28 p.m. to Carla Haynes, LARA, Request for Evidentiary Hearing, License Revocation proceedings: "Carla, regarding a letter dated 8-8-11 from Constance Zinger (ph) outlining license revocation proceedings I'm requesting a full evidentiary hearing. The crux of the matter is money that I owe to the BEP which I believe is around $1200. While I do not dispute this debt the matter that I would like reviewed is the BEP refusal to work with me in making arrangements to not only pay off the money that I owe but also to have some left over to put back into the business. Also, certain information has come to my attention that the BEP has indeed made exceptions for people in the past and have made arrangements for them to pay off monies owed while still proceeding through the program. I hope to have this matter resolved by having the full debt paid by the end of the October, 2011, thus making the need for a hearing a moot point. The legislators will be back, sales will pick up, and I'll have the funds to do this. Cordially, Mr. Rothenhauser", and his phone number, 517-897-1145, and again it just indicates at the bottom "Email Mr. Rothenhauser at Hotmail.com." I'm going to receive that document into the record at this particular point as the --
MR. EAGLE:  Would you please state the date of that again?

JUDGE BOND:  It is August 23rd, 2011.

MR. EAGLE:  Okay, thank you. May I proceed?

JUDGE BOND:  Could I have -- let me have one of those stickers there -- the orange one, please. I'm going to receive it as Exhibit A.

All right, further questions for the witness?

MR. EAGLE:  Yes.

JUDGE BOND:  Go ahead.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Mr. Hoskins, at what point -- from what date did you learn that Mr. Rothenhauser had outside -- outstanding set-aside payments?

A I don't know the exact date.

Q Was it last month?

A Are you talking about from --

Q Any outside -- outstanding set-aside payments after you became his PA?

A Around October of last year.

Q And did you discuss this matter with him?

A I believe so.

Q Would you have a site visit report that indicates that?

MR. HULL:  Objection, it's not the witness's job to provide evidence, documentation.

MR. EAGLE:  Again, since the Commission has violated the rule of not letting us have the records that we requested we would ask that this be permissible.

JUDGE BOND:  Mr. Hoskins, did you prepare some type of a report about your contact with Mr. Rothenhauser?

THE WITNESS:  At this time I can't say yes or no.

JUDGE BOND:  All right.

THE WITNESS:  I don't know.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, go ahead.

MR. EAGLE:  Let me rephrase it then.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q When you meet with an operator and have a conversation with him are you not required to fill out a site visit report?

A Yes.

Q So if you had that kind of conversation it would be in writing, correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay, did -- do you recall from your own knowledge whether you attempted to address that with Mr. Rothenhauser in the way of trying to help him come up with the money as far as ideas to come up with the money?

A I'm not sure how to answer that question.

Q Is it not your responsibility as a PA to assist operators to operate their business to the best of their ability?

A Yes, but I don't know if it's -- I'm not sure how it's my responsibility to have him -- how to help him come up with money. I guess I'm not understanding how you're asking the question.

Q Okay, let me ask you this then, are you aware -- are you familiar with the amount of sales at the Capitol location?

A Yes.

Q And what are those sales?

A The past year ending in August of 2011 was roughly $30,000.

JUDGE BOND:  Excuse me?

THE WITNESS:  Thirty thousand.

JUDGE BOND:  For what length of time?

THE WITNESS:  Twelve months ending in August of two-thousand-and-eleven.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q And did -- are those sales -- okay -- excuse me -- strike that. Based on those sales what is the profit expectation for Mr. Rothenhauser's location?

A Profit expectation?

Q Yes?

A Are you -- the profit -- I'm not sure what you're asking.

Q What is the percentage of sales that Mr. Rothenhauser is supposed to make under the rules?

A Twenty-five percent is the profit percent that is expected.

Q Okay, that's what I was asking for, and so 25 percent, do you know what 25 percent of $30,000 would be?

A Approximately 7500.

Q And are you familiar with the rule that requires that a location bring in to an operator 120 percent of minimum wage?

MR. HULL:  Objection, relevance.

JUDGE BOND:  Yeah, what's the relevance?

MR. EAGLE:  It goes right to the -- to the expectation and the requirement of the Commission to provide a location that provides him with an income that he can pay his bills.

MR. HULL:  Your Honor, as this hearing is strictly in regards to paying a fee based on the income generated from the facility and not on an income for the operator himself and it's not a hearing that's been requested to review the sales of the facility by Mr. Rothenhauser but rather his payments I don't believe this is relevant.

JUDGE BOND:  I don't think it's relevant either.

MR. EAGLE:  You're saying that it's not relevant that the Commission's responsibilities aren't being met to help him meet his profit expectation and pay his bills?

JUDGE BOND:  Well, when we admitted Exhibit A and we looked at the other documents that had been considered in this matter it seems to me that it's purely a matter of whether or not he's paid his set-aside fees, whether they're up-to-date, and there's nothing in his letter when he said he wanted to have a hearing that indicated that he wanted to go into these matters so I don't really find it --

MR. EAGLE:  First of all, this is not his appeal.

JUDGE BOND:  I understand that. You've placed that on the record and I understand --

MR. EAGLE:  I'll restate it since you're bringing it up again. It's not his appeal and we have a right to raise issues with respect to the violation of rules that the Commission has not done having to help him meet his responsibility and so it is relevant.

JUDGE BOND:  Okay, let's move on to relevant matters.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Mr. Hoskins, did you provide any specific support to help Mr. Rothenhauser to raise his sales at the Capitol?

A Yes.

Q And what were those?

A I spent many days with him trying to give him opportunities, brought in new equipment to help him with different products -- bring into the store -- help him try and raise his inventory levels to a profit level.

Q Okay, let's take those one by one, you said that -- well, first of all, for each of these contacts you are required to make a synopsis report, correct?

MR. HULL:  Objection, asked and answered.

JUDGE BOND:  That's true.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Okay, for each of these visits that you just referred to would you have made a report?

MR. HULL:  Objection, asked and answered.

MR. EAGLE:  He didn't answer.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, I'll take an answer to this question.

Would you have made a report on each of these contacts?

THE WITNESS:  Yes.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Would those be available?

A Yes.

Q Okay, for each -- for -- what specifically did you do to help Mr. Rothenhauser to increase his inventory?

A I showed him where inventory needed to be increased. I tried to encourage him to increase the inventory because he has an inventory level that he's supposed to maintain and he is well beneath that level.

Q And how is he supposed to maintain that inventory level?

A By purchasing products to bring into the store.

Q And what would be the source of the funds to purchase those -- that inventory?

MR. HULL:  Objection, Your Honor, this still goes back to relevance. None of this is relevant to payment of set-aside fees.

MR. EAGLE:  Again, sales and inventory and all go right directly to the set-aside payment of the requirement of paying set-asides. You can't divorce one from the other.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, I'll take some more testimony on this line.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Did -- and where is -- where are these funds for inventory supposed to come from?

A From the sales of inventories in the store.

Q Okay, are you familiar with minimum orders of companies that provide product to blind vendors?

A Yes.

Q And are they very low, are they -- I mean, okay, you -- based on your experience thus far have your blind vendors been able to meet minimum orders of companies that have minimum orders?

A Depends on the location.

Q What about the Capitol?

A The Capitol, I suggested that he team up with other operators to be able to get together and he could be able to order off of those operators -- or along side those operators in a piggyback situation to -- able to help on sales and purchasing of stuff when he is not able to fulfill a order.
Q And did you make any specific recommendations as to operators he could team up with that would be appropriate?

A Yes, I did.

Q And who were those?

A At the time it would have been Ray O'Dell (ph) out of the House of Representatives -- excuse me -- the State -- yes, the House of Representatives, and once he was moved on to a different location I also suggested Rutherford (unintelligible) when he came in.

JUDGE BOND:  What was the last name?

THE WITNESS:  Of which one, I'm sorry?

JUDGE BOND:  The last name you just said?

THE WITNESS:  Rutherford Beard (ph).

JUDGE BOND:  Rutherford Beard?

THE WITNESS:  And that location is one block away.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q And do you know -- to your knowledge do you know if he talked to any of those operators?

A Not to my knowledge, I don't know.

Q Did you ask him?

A If he talked -- I've asked him a couple different times.

Q What was his response?

A He tends to go around the situation. He doesn't ever answer questions directly.

Q What do you mean by that?

A There's always an excuse or a reason. There's not an exact answer to the questions.

Q And what was your response to that?

A I tried to get to the answers but if he's not going to answer the question I can't force him to answer a question.

Q And you have a report that indicates that?

A Again, yes.

Q Okay, are you aware of the 120 percent of minimum wage rule?

MR. HULL:  objection, relevance, Your Honor, Mr. Eagle has tried this line of questioning on several occasions. The issue at hand is the payment of set-aside.

JUDGE BOND:  Okay, I don't find this relevant.

MR. EAGLE:  Okay, for the record, I'm just going -- I'm going to stop this line and we're going to -- I'm going to ask that we close the hearing. We -- I want to make for the record that the Commission has a responsibility to provide facilities that provide a licensee an income equal to or greater than 120 percent of minimum wage based on a 40-hour week and currently that number is just under -- for an annual income -- would be just under 18,000. It's 17,7-something, 700-and-something, and this location obviously based on Mr. Hoskins' testimony is not doing that, therefore, they are not meeting our obligations. We have not been given an opportunity to subpoena witnesses which the -- Pat Cannon (ph) the director requires of us for these type of hearings -- therefore we're not able to present the information that is relevant to meet his obligations.

MR. HULL:  Your Honor, it's obvious based on this line of questioning and Mr. Eagle's oratory that it's his goal to taint the record and taint the transcripts in an effort to convince the Commission Board who makes the final agency decision of some alleged impropriety with no evidence to support it. No documentation has been provided at this time to support any of the claims that he's made and I ask that this and all references to this matter be stricken from the record and removed from the transcripts.

JUDGE BOND:  All right.

MR. EAGLE:  May I response?

JUDGE BOND:  Go ahead.

MR. EAGLE:  Once again, the Commission has a due process obligation to provide records. We've asked for records. They have not been brought forward. We are required by the director to subpoena witnesses and we have not been given an opportunity since the Notice of Hearing to do so and therefore Mr. Rothenhauser's due process rights have been violated and it goes directly, what we're advocating, goes directly to the payment of set-asides because if the resources aren't there as required by the Commission then the operator can't pay the set-aside.

JUDGE BOND:  Can you cite me a rule that says that there's an exception?

MR. EAGLE:  An exception to what?

JUDGE BOND:  The payment of the set-aside fees. You're --

MR. EAGLE:  There isn't -- there's a hand-and-glove obligation of the Commission to provide a facility -- a minimum facility and that facility has not been provided -- period.

JUDGE BOND:  Response, Mr. Hull?

MR. HULL:  My response is that Mr. Eagle is mischaracterizing the rule. It does not say the Commission will provide a facility that will make any income.

MR. EAGLE:  It is a bottom standard. It has --

MR. HULL:  There --
MR. EAGLE:  -- it has a threshold standard.

MR. HULL:  Excuse me, there is nothing in the promulgated rules that states that a facility will do any volume of monies.

MR. EAGLE:  I didn't say that.

MR. HULL:  Or will return any volume to an operator.

MR. EAGLE:  That is now a misstatement of what I said, a misrepresentation.

JUDGE BOND:  All right --

MR. EAGLE:  I said there is a rule that requires the Commission to establish facilities that provide a minimum -- quote -- "minimum" --

JUDGE BOND:  What rule are you citing, sir?

MR. EAGLE:  I'm -- I haven't had an opportunity to prepare that because I wasn't -- I was expecting that we would be allowed due process and be given an adjournment so we could get the witnesses and the documentation from the Commission that is required under the Administrative Procedures Act, Section 24.274, and that hasn't been done.

MR. HULL:  Your Honor?

JUDGE BOND:  Go ahead.

MR. HULL:  the Commission will stipulate the rule, it's R393.18, Rule 18, which states that the Commission shall establish facilities that are expected to return, not guaranteed to return or will return, but expected to return, and the Commission maintains that a variety of factors including the operations or actions of the operator may affect it.
JUDGE BOND:  All right, any other questions for this witness?

MR. EAGLE:  I have no other questions of this witness at this time. We'll reserve the right to ask for a continuance and bring him back.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, you may step down.

MR. HULL:  May we have redirect?

JUDGE BOND:  Oh, yeah, redirect, go ahead.

redirect examination

by MR. HULL: 

Q The set-aside fee you testified earlier is based off of the net proceeds of the facility; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And could you explain in a little more detail how those net proceeds are derived?

A Net proceeds is the remaining balance of monies left over after all business expenses are paid for.

Q Remaining balance of what monies?

A The monies that were brought in from the sales of the (inaudible) facility.

Q So just for my understanding you're saying that you take the sales of the facility, subtract all of the business expenses, and the money that's left over is the net proceeds; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And then 10 percent of that money that's left over is the set-aside fee that's owed; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q So the money for the set-aside fee should have been brought in by the business regardless of the volume of sales; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q And what if after deducting all the business expenses there's a negative number for the net proceed; are set-aside fees still owed?

A No.

MR. HULL:  Okay, thank you.
JUDGE BOND:  Any recross?

MR. EAGLE:  Yes.

recross-examination

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q If there is a month in which there is a negative set-aside fee owed then -- or not owed because of the negative -- does that carry over and does it -- is that a negative applied to the next month -- subtracted from the next month's -- assuming there's a positive?

A I don't believe so. I believe it goes month to month.

MR. EAGLE:  I have nothing further.

JUDGE BOND:  You may step down.

MR. EAGLE:  Oh, may I ask one more question?

JUDGE BOND:  Yes, go ahead.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q So in the event that a location has a negative income and it's applied the way you say it is, is, in fact, the operator not being more than 10 percent over a year's period?

A No, it's based on a month-to-month evaluation and actually it would be -- if they didn't pay because they were negative one month it would not be more than 10 percent.

MR. EAGLE:  Okay, I have nothing further.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, you may step down.

Mr. Hull, any other evidence or witnesses you wish to present today?

MR. HULL:  Not at this time, Your Honor.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, Mr. Eagle?

MR. EAGLE:  For all the reasons stated repeatedly over and over we at this time are not prepared to present witnesses because they're not available because they have to be subpoenaed according to Director Cannon.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, you have an opportunity to present whatever evidence you have today.

MR. EAGLE:  We are not prepared because nothing has been provided in the way of a record -- the agency records as we've requested under 24.274 and the fact that because of -- the notice was not provided in a timely manner we are not prepared.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, if you don't wish to present any evidence today you can rest your case.

MR. EAGLE:  We are asking for a continuance of our case.

JUDGE BOND:  Mr. Hull?

MR. HULL:  Your Honor, I believe that we've addressed this issue at the start. Mr. Rothenhauser has been made aware of the issues on several occasions. If he wasn't aware he wouldn't have referenced the August 8th letter in his email requesting a hearing so that he could put on proofs for due process. Because he chose to (unintelligible) representation late is not grounds to grant any sort of continuance.

MR. EAGLE:  At this time I'd like to recall Mr. Hoskins.

JUDGE BOND:  Mr. Hoskins, you're recalled to the stand.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Mr. Hoskins, do you recall -- and I remind you you're still under oath --

JUDGE BOND:  I do the reminding around here.

Mr. Hoskins, I remind you you are still under oath.

THE WITNESS:  Yes, Your Honor.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q At the time that -- in early August when this was -- the -- was brought up at a meeting -- I believe it was August 5th -- were you aware of the implementation of Business Enterprise Program support team for Mr. Rothenhauser?

MR. HULL:  Objection, relevance.
MR. EAGLE:  Okay --

JUDGE BOND:  I'm going to take an answer to the question.

MR. EAGLE:  Okay.

THE WITNESS:  Can you repeat the question, please?

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q At the time of the August 5th meeting that commenced proceedings against Mr. Rothenhauser's license were you aware of the implementation of a Business Enterprise Program support team for Mr. Rothenhauser?

A I'm not 100 percent on the date, but yes, I'm aware of the (inaudible).

Q And what was the purpose of the BEST?

A What is the purpose of it?

Q Yes?

A To help bring the operator back into compliance and back into a satisfactory condition in running his facility.

Q And were you part of a compliance review that indicated that the problems -- I'm not sure of the date?

A Yes, I had been a part of those.

Q And what was -- was there anything discussed at that point as to possible resolutions to the issues facing Mr. Rothenhauser at that compliance review?

A Was there -- I'm sorry -- can you repeat that one more time?

Q Okay, was --

A I want to make sure what you're saying.

Q Was -- at the compliance review meeting which I don’t have a record of or have -- I don't even know the date but I know it took place -- do you -- were you aware that there was a discussion about setting up a BEST?

A I don't know if it was prior to or afterwards but the BEST team had been -- has been discussed. It hadn't been implemented. I don't know if it was prior to that -- the compliance review or after the compliance review. I don't know what the time frame was.

Q And do you know -- okay, so there had been -- there has been action with the Business Enterprise Program support team with Mr. Rothenhauser, correct?

A Yes.

Q And is that -- would you characterize that as being positive?

A Yes.

Q Has it addressed the baseline problems of the facility with respect to sales?

MR. HULL:  Objection, relevance, Your Honor.

JUDGE BOND:  I want to hear the testimony so we'll take an answer.

THE WITNESS:  Ask the question again, please.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q As part of the Business Enterprise Program support team have issues been addressed having to do with the Commission's obligation with respect to that location?

A The Commission's obligations or what --

Q  The issues, the issues include the Commission's obligations?

A Yes.

Q And what has been done to do that, to address those?

A I guess I'm not understanding what you're asking?

Q What has the BEST -- what has the Business Enterprise Program support team done to address the issues of the location?

A We've set up time frames and dates of times that he is supposed to follow through with certain obligations as far as what he's supposed to do at the facility. Are you wanting specifics?

Q Yes?

A I guess specifics are he had to put the Coke and Pepsi machines that he has in his location on full service.

Q Excuse me just a minute, what's the purpose of that?

A So that he was not having to spend additional income in purchasing product. The product was being brought in by the companies and fill the machines themselves.

Q Okay, so are you saying that he was unable to purchase the product on his own?

A No, that's not what I said.

Q Okay, what -- why would you have him put it on full service then?

A To help alleviate some of the income that he was putting in those situations, purchasing Coke, purchasing Pepsi, and be able to purchase additional inventory for the location.

Q So cash for inventory was an issue, correct?

A Yes.

Q Okay, what else?
A He needed to continue to pay his set-aside fees and do his reports on time.

Q Okay, and has he done that?

A No, he did not for that month.

Q What month are you talking about?

A The month of August.

Q He has not filed his report?

A I don't know if he has filed it since then but he had not filed it on time.

Q Okay, has he made any -- is there anything in the support team's plan to help him catch up with set-asides or indicate that he will get caught up with set-aside?

A He made a statement of when he was going to pay them but the Commission is not obligated or can we make any arrangements on paying set-aside fees.

Q But was there a consensus that this would be workable, that he could catch up?

A He was supposed to pay by the end of October of this year.

Q Okay, and is there anything else specifically that the BEST team has helped with the issues of the location?

A Working on being -- to do deliveries to the representatives and legislators inside the location.

Q How many people occupy that building, the Capitol?

A I don't know that answer.

Q You don't have a -- any answer as to who -- the numbers in that building; is that correct?

A I don't know how many have offices in that building or how many -- no, I don't know.

Q Are you aware that it basically is a three-day-a-week operation when the legislature is in session?

A That's a matter of opinion. I can't say one way or the other.

Q Okay, then are you familiar with his sales?

A Yes, I am.

Q Were those not reviewed as part of the Business Enterprise Program support team?

A Yes, and so was his income.

Q And does that -- does that review indicate to you that there -- that basically it is a three-day-a-week operation?

A Again, that's a matter of opinion. I can't make that assessment.

Q Are you aware that he was -- he has been making 30 -- taking in sales $30 a day on Mondays and Fridays?

A I don't remember the exact amount that he was saying, no.

Q You're not familiar with -- at all about what his sales --

A That's not what I said, sir.

Q Okay, you said you reviewed the information, correct?

A I reviewed the information, not day to day information. I reviewed monthly information.

Q Okay, at the Business Enterprise Program support team meeting do you recall it being indicated that he was doing approximately $30 a day in sales on Mondays and Fridays?

A I remember those sales being low. I don't remember the exact amount.

Q Okay, do you have other operators in this situation?

A In this -- in what situation?

Q Owing set-aside?

A Not that I can think of off the top of my head to this extreme.

Q Do you -- you don't have any temporary or blind operators that owe set-aside other than Mr. Rothenhauser?

A That's not what I said.

Q Okay, then answer my question, do you have --

A I am answering your question. I said I am not aware off the top of my head.

Q Are -- is that not a responsibility of a PA to know whether --

MR. HULL:  Objection, argumentative.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, it is argumentative. He's answered the question. He said he's not aware so if you keep picking at him he's going to continue to say he's not aware.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q My question was are you not supposed to be aware of whether operators -- as a PA -- are you not supposed to be aware --

A I'm supposed to be aware and when I get notification then (unintelligible) to be aware and I have not received any notification recently of any operators that are past due on set-aside.

Q Okay, so your testimony is that to the best of your knowledge as a PA there are no other operators you're assigned to that owe set-aside fees; is that correct?

A Not to my knowledge at this time, no.

MR. EAGLE:  I have nothing further.

JUDGE BOND:  Any further questioning, Mr. Hull, on this line?

MR. HULL:  No, Your Honor.

JUDGE BOND:  I have a question. Why was this Business Enterprise support team put together for this particular individual?

THE WITNESS:  To try and boost sales and boost income into the facility.

JUDGE BOND:  And you're not aware of the timing of it when it was first put into place?

THE WITNESS:  I didn't say that. I said I did not know if it happened before or after the compliance review.

JUDGE BOND:  And the compliance review happened on what date?

THE WITNESS:  I don't remember the exact day. I know the first meeting we had with Mr. Rothenhauser was just before Labor Day.

JUDGE BOND:  Okay, and so at that particular point was it being contemplated that his license or the proceedings to revoke his license were going to be initiated?
THE WITNESS:  Yes, that had already been initiated.

JUDGE BOND:  So the BEST team was put together after the process to revoke the license?

THE WITNESS:  I believe so.

JUDGE BOND:  And why would that have been done?

THE WITNESS:  To try and show that the Commission is still trying to support the operator.

JUDGE BOND:  Well, if you're going to revoke the license why would you be doing that?

THE WITNESS:  Like I said, to try and help the operator out and not just give up on the operator completely because the facility still gets to be ran.
JUDGE BOND:  Okay, and why is the facility not just shut down?

THE WITNESS:  Why don't we just shut the facility down?

JUDGE BOND:  Well, if you're going to revoke his license why do you continue to operate it and give him support?

THE WITNESS:  Because if his license is revoked we have the opportunity to put a different operator in that location.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, anything else from either side?
Mr. Eagle, do you want to ask any other questions of this witness?

MR. EAGLE:  Yes, I'd like to follow up.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Wasn't there an original compliance review, like, in April?
A There -- I believe there was one around that time. (Inaudible).

Q So that review would have officially started the commencement of the revocation of the license, correct?

A I don't remember if that was (inaudible) or not.

Q Okay, what's the purpose of a 30-day compliance review?

A To give the operator an opportunity to get himself back into compliance.

Q Okay, so is it your testimony that that started somewhere around April?

A I don't know the exact day.

Q Would it have been in that area?

A I don't know the exact day. I don't want to give a day because I'm not 100 percent positive on that.

Q Okay, do you recall -- were you present at that; do you --

A I believe so, yes.

Q And do you -- I don't remember if I asked you this -- at that -- was there any talk of establishing a Business Enterprise Program support team?

A I don't believe so at that time. I don't believe there was.

Q And as a follow are you aware that Mr. James Chaney got involved and actually made a request of BEST be set up?

A I am not aware of that. I never spoke to James Chaney.

Q When did you first learn about the BEST team?

A When I talked to Rob Essenberg.
Q And when was that?

A I don't know the date.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, you've got two names here, James Chaney, who is that?

MR. EAGLE:  He is the --

JUDGE BOND:  No, I'm not asking you. I'm asking the witness.

THE WITNESS:  He's the president.
JUDGE BOND:  Excuse me?

THE WITNESS:  Elected Operators Committee president, or chair, I'm sorry, chair.

JUDGE BOND:  And do you know how to spell the name?

THE WITNESS:  Chaney -- C-h-a-n-e-y.

JUDGE BOND:  And the other name that you mentioned?

THE WITNESS:  Rob Essenberg.

JUDGE BOND:  Rob?

THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

JUDGE BOND:  How do you spell the last name?

THE WITNESS:  E-s-s-e-n-b-e-r-g.

JUDGE BOND:  And who is Rob Essenberg?

THE WITNESS:  He's a member of the Elected Operators Committee.

JUDGE BOND:  Okay, go ahead.

by MR. EAGLE: 

Q Okay, is it -- to the best of your knowledge -- a role of the Elected Operators Committee to provide advocacy for blind vendors?

A I'm sorry, can you repeat that one more time?

Q Is it a role of the Operators Committee to provide advocacy for blind vendors?

A Yes.

Q And would one of the roles of the Operators Committee advocacy be to request the establishment of a Business Enterprise Program support team?

A Yes.

Q And to your knowledge, you may have testified to this, do you have any knowledge as to whether that was requested by the EOC or more specifically James Chaney in this case?

A No.

Q You don't have any knowledge?

A I don't have any knowledge of that.

Q Okay, and you don't know the date when you first learned about the Business Enterprise support team?

A When I first learned as far as --

Q For this case?

A I don't know the exact date, no, sir.

MR. EAGLE:  I have nothing further.

JUDGE BOND:  Mr. Hull, do you want to ask any questions on this line?

MR. HULL:  No, Your Honor, thank you.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, I guess you can step down.

Mr. Eagle?
MR. EAGLE:  Again, we renew our motion for a continuance.

JUDGE BOND:  It's denied.

MR. EAGLE:  And we would like to ask that the record remain open for written closing arguments.

JUDGE BOND:  Any objection to that, Mr. Hull?

MR. HULL:  Your Honor, as outlined in Petitioner's Exhibit 1 this matter has been ongoing since March of this year. It's already October. By continuing to delay this recommended decision by waiting for written arguments is only going to continue to drag out this hearings process and will not serve to identify any new information as evidenced and testimony cannot be provided in a closing statement so we don't see the need to prolong this any further.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, I'm going to deny request for written closing statements. You can make an oral closing statement if you'd like at this particular point if you're not going to present any evidence.

MR. EAGLE:  Okay, we'd like to given your ruling which we will appeal as a matter of law.

closing argument

MR. EAGLE:  We would like to put on the record that this issue has been ongoing not only as Mr. Hull indicated more recently it has been going on since March. The documents show to the best of my recollection that actually it's been going on since February of '09 and nothing has been done until just recently when the advocacy of the Elected Operators Committee stepped in and requested a Business Enterprise support team which policy says that the Commission should do anyway and the fact that Mr. Rothenhauser has been denied due process and the fact that the Americans With Disabilities Act and the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, Section 504 has been violated with respect to providing documents in a format that Mr. Rothenhauser and his representative can use and the fact that the Administrative Procedures Act with respect to the notice of issues and the specific violations of the rules have not been done -- we would like to say that Mr. Rothenhauser has been denied due process and not been given an opportunity -- the rules call for a fair -- full, fair evidentiary hearing, and given what we've put on the record that has not been done.
JUDGE BOND:  All right, Mr. --

MR. EAGLE:  And we would ask that the Commission Petition to Revoke his license be denied.

JUDGE BOND:  Mr. Hull?

closing argument

MR. HULL:  The promulgated rules of the Business Enterprise Program are clear. They require payment of the set-aside. Mr. Hoskins testified today that Mr. Rothenhauser has not made payment of those set-asides, that he is not fulfilling his obligations for reporting his obligations to not only to the program but his fellow licensees by making that payment of set-asides. Our hands are tied. Our responsibility on what we're required to do is to proceed with license revocation. The promulgated rules state the Commission shall not accept partial payment. It says that the Commission shall not enter into repayment agreements. What it does say is that failure to pay two or more set-aside fees shall result in the commencement of license revocation. That's what brought us here today. There is no team out there -- BEST team or anything like that -- or nothing that a promotional agent can do that can force an individual to make payment of these fees, that is strictly the responsibility of the operator, again, a fact that is outlined in the promulgated rules. Mr. Rothenhauser has not done that. We don't want to proceed and revoke his license. The rules require that we do that so that's what brings us here today. That's the proofs that we've presented today and we ask that to be considered in the recommended decision.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, any rebuttal argument?

rebuttal argument

MR. EAGLE:  I would just like to say that the Commission has been disingenuous in their attempts to help Mr. Rothenhauser based on the actions of the Business Enterprise support team and also that their action against Mr. Rothenhauser is arbitrary and (inaudible) because there are operators out there that owe set-asides -- many, many that owe set-asides and no action has been taken against them.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, I'll indicate for the record that I'll be issuing a written Proposal for Decision. It will be based upon the information and testimony presented in the record. I will indicate also for the record, just to make it clear, there's only been two exhibits received, Petitioner's Exhibit Number 1 and Exhibit A which I received which was the email. Petitioner's Exhibit Number 2 and Number 3 are retained into the record and I'll note that they are proposed exhibits but not received into the record. 

Anything else either party would like to place on the record -- Mr. Eagle?

MR. EAGLE:  I would like to request that a transcript -- audio transcript of this proceeding be made available to me under the Americans With Disabilities Act.
JUDGE BOND:  Mr. Hull?

MR. HULL:  Your Honor, the Commission requests for its commissioners as part of the recommended decision that we also receive a written transcript of the record as well as copies of all proofs admitted into evidence to provide as a part of the final agency -- or as a part of the record for determining the final agency decision.

MR. EAGLE:  May I respond?

JUDGE BOND:  Go ahead.

MR. EAGLE:  He said written. Written doesn't help me unless it's in electronic format and I would be glad to receive a written transcript in a written format that I can read, not a PDF or a (unintelligible) but in a -- either plain text or Word document I could use.

JUDGE BOND:  Mr. Hull?

MR. HULL:  Oh, that's fine. I wasn't speaking for Mr. Eagle --

JUDGE BOND:  All right.

MR. HULL:  -- just for our board, we need it in some sort of written or electronic format, just not audio.

MR. EAGLE:  I would just like to say for the record that this is a direct request for me because when they do order that they do not provide it to the representative.

JUDGE BOND:  All right, I'll take those matters under advisement. As I indicated I'll be issuing a written Proposal for Decision and according to my clock now it's 11:23 a.m. I'm going to go off the record at that time. Thank you all and have a good day.

MR. HULL:  Thank you, Your Honor.

(At 11:23 a.m., proceedings concluded).
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